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Profile of the Board of Directors

Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen has over 37 years of international experience within the Port, Shipping &
Logistic industry. Mr. Madsen is the Senior Vice President, Regional Head for Europe, Middle East, and
Airica of International Container Terminal Services Inc. Alongside he is a Director of several other ICTSI

group companies.
Mr. Madsen spent 27 years with the A.F. Moller Maersk Group invarious internafional senior positions.

Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph, FICD was an Independent Director. He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Corporate Directors. Gordon Alan F. Joseph is the Honorary Consul of Kingdom of the Netherlands to
the Philippines, and has served as the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Metro Cebu
Development Coordinating Board and as Chairman of the Infrastructure and Power Committees of the
Regional Development Council, for Region Vil in the Central Philippines. He has also served as a
Director of the Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority. He is a major shareholder and CEO of
Philpacific Insurance Brokers, Inc., the 5th largest insurance broker and risk management adwvisory
company in the Philippines. Mr. Joseph has a Bachelor's degree from De La Salle University Manila in
1979 {Honors Programme).

On Februany 24th, 2024, Gordon was retired as an Independent Director

Mr. Rune Rasmussen is an Independent Director, Mr. Rune Rasmussen has more than 17 years of
exitensive experience in Asset Managemeni, direcling large investment projecis and portiolios,
business transiormations and faciitating change management. He had been holding senior
management roles in Valais Investment Management, Dexia Bank and Acuma Wealth Management in
past, Mr. Hune holds a Master's degree in economics from University of Copenhiagen.

Mr. Asif Haza Khan is a Cerlified Director, holds an MBA (Banking and Finance), and a Postgraduate
Diploma (istamic Banking and Finance). He is an associate member of vanious professional bodies,
such as, Institute of Public Accountants of Australia, Institute of Financial Accountants of UK, Institute
of Certified Public Accountants of Pakistan, Institute of Corporate Secretaries of Pakistan, and many
others. He also holds Diploma in Advanced Computer Studies that has helped him in efficiently
managing emerging technology and information security risks including supply chain risks. He has
atiended many international seminars and conferences, advanced financial management courses and
training from institutions of international repute in Pakistan and abroad.

On February 24, 2024, Asif Haza Khan was elected as an independent director.

Fakistar international Container Terminal Limited 04



Mr. Bilal Shahid has more than 16 years of diversified professional experience in the development of
seaports, managing port operafions, multinational logistics services, transport, warehousing,
stevedoring, and off-dock container terminal operations. He has been the Director in numerous
companies of the Bilal Group. He is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from New Jersey, US and also
holds B.Sc. in Accounting from Louisiana State University (LSU).

Ms. Lirene C. Mora-5Suarez has been associated with ICTS| since April 2007. She is currently serving
as the Director, Global Corporate Legal Affairs Department of ICTSI. She is a seasoned lawyer with
more than 18 years of experience. She was awarded “2019 Woman Lawyer of the year “and was
Young Lawyer of the Year 2019 finalist by Asian Legal Business Philippine Law Awards. Ms. Lirene
received her Juris Doctor degree in Law and Bacheior of Arls degree in Philosophy (Summa Cum
Laude) from the University of Philippines.”

Mr. Jacob Christian Guimann has been with ICTSI since 2013, first as Director of Business
Development and presently as Managing Director of ICTSI' s terminal operations in Onne, Nigeria. Prior
lo this Mr. Guimann was with the A.P. Moller Maersk Group where he held positions in finance and
business development. Mr. Guimannis a graduate of Oxdord University.

Mr. Arnie D. Tablante was appointed on September 15, 2021 as the Treasurer of ICTS!. Prior to such
role, he was the Risk and Capital Director of ICTSI. Concurrently, he is a Director and Treasurer of
Cavite Gateway Terminal, Inc., Falconer Aircraft Management, Inc., IW Cargo Handlers, Inc., South
Cotabato Integrated Port Services, Inc., Abbotsford Holdings, Inc., Cordilla Property Holdings, Inc., a
freasurer of Intermodal Terminal Holdings, Inc., and a Director of Pakistan International Gontainer
lerminal Ltd., Motukea International Terminal Ltd., South Pacific International Container Terminal Lid.,
Aeolina Investments Limited and Crixus Limited. Prior to joining ICTSI, he was already a seasoned
banker, having been connected with Union Bank of the Philippines. Mr. Tablanie received his Master's
Degree in Business Administration from the Asian Institute of Management, and holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Industrial Management Engineering from the De La Salle University.
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Chairman’s Review

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Dear Shareholders

It is indeed an immense pleasure to welcome you 1o the 28rd Annual General Meeting of the Company and fo
present Company’s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2023,

Industry and Business Overview

During 2023, a multitude of global and regional economic challenges emerged, chamacterized by heightened
inflation rates, geopolitical tensions, fiscal contraction measures and tightening of monetary palicies by central
banks of various countries aiming io control the inflation. Pakistan, in paricular, faced its own economic
difficulties, including fuel and energy pushed inflationary pressureand a significant depreciation of the currency.
Poditical turbulences excelied these problems, starting from depleting foreign exchange reserves and theretfore
impor restrictions were placed for procurement of goods and services giobally which curlalled the domestic
growth and employment market, Non availability of essential capital goods and raw matenals coupled with
escalating energy prices also nose-dived the export industry. The adversities in imports and exports volume
largely impacts the business of senvices of container handlings.

The conditions of IMF Bail Out package has left no choice for the Government except fo give 2 new shape fo the
economy by way of some strategic measures including but not imited to documentation of economy. A futuristic
view will be essential for those who are on piloting seat of any decision making.

Review of Financial Performance

During the year 2023, alongside the external factors as described above, one of the major challenge was to hand
over ihe licensed premises and assets pursuant to expiry of the Concession Agreement on June 17, 2023,

Combating all challenges, it is commendable how your company has shown great resistance and managed to
sustain the financial performance. The details of the same and future outiook have been coverad in Direclors'
Beport.

Governance and Culture — Beview of Board's performance

The Board has continuously acknowledged that its members must bring core competencies, diversity, requisile
skills, and experience for effective governance of the Company. The Bord includes members of diversified
expertise including but not limited 1o the field of port, shipping, logistics, financial management, strategy,
business development, assets management, business transformation, risk management and insurance. All
members of the Board are cognizant of their fiduciary duty towards the Company and its sharehclders and have
ensured that this obligation is kept inmind at all times. The Board has constifuted independent Audit Committes,
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Commities | order to further strengthen
the govermance structure of the Company.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to maintain effective oversight of the operations of the Company
through quarterly meetings of the Board and itse Committess. All the Directors, including the Independent
Directars, fully participated in and made contributions to the decision-making process of the Board.

The Board, its Commitiees and individual Directors camied out selt-evaluation of their performance during the
year and found it to be satisfactory. The overall aim was to measure the cument performance of the Board and
identify areas forimprovement in fuiure years.




Chairman’s Review

For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

Acknowledagments

[ would like to thank my felliow board members, management feam and employees for their active contributions
during theyear.

| also wish to express my gratitude to our esteemed investors and other stakeholders including the Securities
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Stock Exchange and Bankers for their unwavering support and
continued trust in the Company.

Hans-0Ole Madsen
Chairman of the Board
Karachi,

Dated: May 09, 2024
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Directors' Report

I'he Board of Directors of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited is pleased to submit the
Annual Report of your Company including the audited financial statemenis for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Ihe year 2023 was quite challenging as it was warranted with unprecedent events. Conflict in Ukraine
is being viewed as a tip on iceberg. Resultantly disorders were experienced in commeodity prices. In
order to control the inflation, Central banks of many countries started to raise the policy rates. On the
basis, the fragmentation is experienced in commaodity super cycles which triggered the vulnerability in
exports and imports volume almost across the globe and Pakistan is not an exception of that
challenge. The services of container handling require the back of smooth transition of expart and
import cycles which was not the case in 2023 in Pakistan due o external factors and as also pursuant
of the measures of the financial regulator in Pakistan aimed for necessary correction in balance of

paymant.

Alongside the challenges on account of external factors supra, your company laced the expiration of
its Concession Agreement with KP1. The aforementioned agreement to Build, Operate and Transfer
(BOT) was entered into for 21 years commenced from June 18, 2002 and reached to its end on June
17, 2023. The sponsars and Board of Directors had done all the efforts including, but not limited to,
seeking of legal aid and Courts interventions for seeking the renewal of the agreement but KPT and
Ministry of Maritime moved and decreed the concession to another operator under Government-to
Government Agreement, without inviting any tender process.

Accordingly, the financial results of the year represent the operations of container handiing business for
a part of the year and then after the operations were confined to the extent of management cum
technical senice arrangement with AD Port/KGTL for the purpose of handover of operations and the
terminal.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

During the: year ended December 31, 2023, your Company handled 132,679 containers as compared
o 371,028 containers handied in the year 2022. Your Company recorded revenue of Rs. 5,392 million.
Ihrough operational excellence and cost optimizations, your Company posted a Gross Profil of Hs.
2,458 million. The year ended with anet profit of Rs. 1,801 million.




2023 2022
(Rs. in millions)

Revenueg 6,392 12,024
Grozss Profil 2 458 5,181
Profit belore laxation 3,374 5,003
Profit after taxation 1,801 2,729
Unapproprated profit brought forward 896 1,452
Profit available [or appropriation 2,696 4181
Appropriations:

Final cash dvidend lor the year-end

December 31, 2022 @ Re. Nil per share = (982)
{December 31, 2021 @ Rs. 9.00 per sharg)
Interirm cash dividends for the year-end
December 31, 2023 @ Rs. 20.00 per share (2,183) (2,303)
[December 31, 2022 @ Rs. 21.10 per share)
Unappropriated profil carried forward 513 BOG
Basic and Diluled Earnings Per Share 16.50 2501
FUTUREQUTLOOK

Through the process of Hection of Directors, the Board has taken charge effective from February 24,
2024 and the Board has also re-appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company.
Moreover, necessary Commitiees of the Board have also been reconstituted.

After discussing the unfortunate and unwarranted expiration ol Concession Agreement, we also
consider it appropriate to discuss something on economic side which is relevant to consider about
future business plan.

Despite of all the commercial and economic uncertainties, the new Board is vigilant to do the best.
Some of the non-binding expressions of interests are in the process of evaluation invalving the
potential to earn license fee coupled with management and technical fee.

CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND IMPACTS OF BUSINESS ON
ENVIRONMENT

Health, Safety and Erwironment [HSE] considerations were an integral part of the day-lo-day
operations of your Company. In order o ensure minimal impact of terminal operations on the health
and safety of our stakeholders and on the environment, your Company had secured an Integrated
Management System (IMS) Certification thal was consisted of 1SO 8001 (Quality Management
System), ISO 14001 (Environmental Management Systemn) & 150 45001 (Occupational Health & Satety
Management System).

Your Company had taken various significant measures including initiatives to reduce emissions, wasie
management and treatment methods, fire-fighting arrangements, emergency preparedness drills,
dedicaied ambulance service, first aid facilities, load testing of equipments, leaky containers storage
area, HSE induction of staff and other associated persons, fraining, and awareness programs, etc.
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Directors' Report

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company recognizes the importance of crealing sustainable value chains and aims to contribute
to the well-being of its stakeholders. As part of this philosophy, the company has established
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSH) programs that are in line with the United Nations' Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal controls policy is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and
afficiency of the Company's operations, reliability of financial information, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. Management ensures efficient and effective Internal Controls by
identifying controls, reviewing periinent policies/procedures, and esiablishing refevant control
procedures and monitoring systems. The Internal Control System has been designed to provide
reasonable assurance 1o the shareholders and Board of Directors. The Management considers that
the existing Internal Control System is adequate and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Board of Directors acknowledges their responsibility towards the implementation of an effective
internal control environment throughout the organization. The Company has set up an effective and
efficient Internal Audit function that rigorously monitors the control environment of the Company. This
function conducts comprehensive quarterly reviews of the activities of your Company. Broader targets
of the said reviews are establishment and observance of internal contrals for ensuring operational
efficiencies and safeguard of profitability.

The activities of the Internal Audit depariment are overseen by the Audit Committee which regularly
manitars the performance of the department through review of the internal audit reporis on a quarterly
basis and accordingly apprising the Board of its findings and recommendations.

The Board reviews the Company's financial operations and position at regular intervals by means of
interim accounts, reports, and other financial informafion.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
I'he Pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2023, is annexed to this Report.

The Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Executives, and their spouses and minor children have made no
transactions in the Company's shares during the year except those disclosed in accordance with the
law. Executives for this purpose means Chiel Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Internal
Auditor, Company Secretary, and other employees of the Company designated as executives by the
Board. The Board of Directors has set a threshold of the annual basic salary of Rs. 1,200,000 for
terming as Executive.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of the Directors® Report, the Board of Directors comprises of seven directors including a
female director. In respect of the executive, non-executive, and independent direclors, the Board
comprises the following:

1 : . Pakistan Infemational Gontainer Tenminal Limited



a) Independent Directors:
i. Mr. Rune Rasmussen
ii. Mr. Asif Haza Khan

b} Nan-executive Directors

. Mr Hans-Ole-Mad=sen

i. Mr. Arnie Dizon Tablante

jii. Mr. Bilal Shahid

iv. Mr. Jacob Christian Gulmann

c) Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lirene Cologuio Mora-Suarez [Female Director]

All the directors lake a keen interest in the proper stewardship of the Company's affairs. During the

year, four Board Meetings and four Audit Commitiee Meetings, were held. The names of Directors and
their attendance in Board and Committee meetings held during the year are presented below:

Meetings Aftended Member of
riﬁ N = Auscit Audit HRAR O
Commities Committee | Commities | "~ w0
1 | Mr Hans-Ole-Madsen 4 v v
2 . Arnie Dizon Tablants - 4 -
3 | Mr. Bilal Shahid 3 3 . P
4 Mr. Jacob Christian Guirmann 4 -
5 | Ms. Lirene Coloquio Mom-Susrer 4 v
6 | Mr. Hune Ragmussen 4 4 v =

Leave ol absance was granted 10 the Desctors who oould not aftend the Board Mesting.

Directors Remuneration Policy

The Board has a duly approved policy for the remuneration of the members of the Board for attending
the Board and Commities Meetings, the salient features of which are mentioned below:

i- Non-executive Directors:

Each Non-executive director is only entitled 1o a fee for attending the Board meeting of USD 1,000 per

Board meeting.

ii- Independent Directors:

Each Independent director is only entitled to a fee for atiending the Board meeting of USD 2,000 per
Board meeting and USD 1,000 for attending each Committee meeting.

iii- Directors are also entitied to reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection to the attendance of
the Board and/or Board Commitiee meetings.




Directors' Report

Details of mmuneration of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer are disclosed in note 27 io the
financial statements.

PARENT COMPANY

Your Company is a subsidiary of ICTSI Mauritius Limited, whereas its ultimate holding Company is
International Container Terminal Services Inc., a company incorporated inthe Philippines.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, EY Ford Bhodes Chartered Accountants stand retired at the conclusion of the
upcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment. The
Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of the retiring auditors for the year ending
December 31, 2024, The Board has endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES AND THEIR MITIGATIONS

The Company addresses risks individually in the course of its business operations and manages the
risk in support of the company's vision, mission, goals, and objeclives. The management determines
response strategies for such risks which include avoid, transfer, reduce or accep! strategy. Financial
risks have been described in detail in note 25 to the financial statements that cover credit risk, liquidity
risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk, and capital risks.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance set out by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
relevant for the year ended December 31, 2023, has been duly complied with. A statement 1o this
efiect is annexed to the Annual Report.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of

aftairs fairly, the results of its operations, cash fiows, and changes in equity.
- Proper books of account have been maintained by the Comipany.

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
stalements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
. International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 2017, as applicable in

Pakislan, as also slated in note 2.1 of the financial statements have been followed in the
preparation of financial statements.

. I'ne system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.
. Even after expiration of the Concession Agreement, the Company is optimistic that it will

remain operational for the foreseeable future and accordingly financial stalements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

® There has been no material departure from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations
(FSX Regulations).

® Asummary of key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed to this Heport.

. Information about contribution to the national exchequer in the form of taxes and levies is given

in the respective notes to the Financial Statemenis.




. Ihe Company operales a contributory Provident Fund Scheme for its eligible permanent
employees. The value of its investiments based on the audited accounts as at June 30, 2023, is
INil.

CODEOF CONDUCT

The underlying values of the Company's Gode of Conduct are based on honesty, integrity, and
openness along with respect for the human rights and interests of the employees. The Company's
Code of Conduct promotes guidelines on various ethical standards including issues such as conflict of
interest, employee rights, elc. The Board ensures that the Code of Conduct is disseminated to,
understood, and observed by employees. |he Codeis also available on the Company's websile.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments aflecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between December 31, 2023, and the date of this.

COMMUNICATION

Caommunication with the members is given high priority. Annual reporis are disseminated in line with
the procedure specified in the Companies Act, 2017. The Company also has a website,
www.picL.com.pk which contains up-to-date information on the Company's aclivities and financial
reports.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

I'he Chairman's review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the overall performance of the
Board of Directors and the effectiveness of the role played by the Board of Directors in achieving the
Company’s objectives for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Board of Directors endorses the
contents of the Chairman's Review.

ACKNOWILEDGEMENTS

On behalt of the Board, we would like to extend our sincerest appreciation and gratitude to our valued
shareholders and customers for their unwavering trust and support. We recognize that the success of
our company is a reflection of the trust and confidence placed in us by our stakeholders, and we are
grateful for this ongoing partnership. Our employees are an integral part of our organization and we
appreciale their unwavering commitment and dedication to our mission. Their hard work and
contributions have been instrumental to our growth and continued success. Thank you far your
continued trust and support in our company.

Faorand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vs, & ) 5/
FEL .

— LN
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen Ms. Lirene Coloquio Mora-Suarez
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

Karachi

Dated: May 09, 2024
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Key Operating & Financial Data

Statement of Profit or Loss (Rs. in Millions)
Rearue

Gross Profil

Frofit Before Taxation

Profit After Taxation

2023

6,392.05
2.458.20
3,373.85

1,800.50

Stetement of Financial Position (Rs. in Millions)

Shiare Capilal and resarves
Current Lisbilibes

Total Linbilities

Current Assets

Total Asaets

Ratios

Earmings Per Ordinary Share (Rs)
Feturn on Eoquity (%)

Dbt Equity Ratio

Diwicdend Payoul Ratio (%)

. Pa I- .H 1L Lis .-. GDIFIETFHT r . Ell }

1,784.85
4,418.67
4,418.67
6,203.52
6,203.52

16.50
o111
0100

1

2022

1202418
5,161.04
500323

2724944

216741
G,0r2.74
&, 14230
764281

8,.308.70

25
111.61

(k100

2021

11.098.67
916007
4,775.90

2. f&348
405131
411481
54902

;.05
13090
00

105

2020

9,009.17
4,120.66
3.764.27
267252

245559
£2.318.46
2,376,863
3. 186685

4 53222

24 48
10{).B6
O-100

104

2018 208

782713 E250.37
J,458.83 3,750.89
301105 3.290.18

2137471 213482

284373 2,299.496
160738 1.608.30
1,752.68 1,868.58
240681 1.558.58
4,5068.32 4.168.55

18.58 19.56
83.11 az.m
100 0:100
o2 ag
a3
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To the members of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 [the Regulations]

We have reviewed the encicsed Statemenl of Compliance with the iisted Companies (Code of
Corparate Governance) Regulations. 2019 (the Reguiations) prepared by the Board of Direclors
of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (Lhe Comoany) for the ywar ended 31
December 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The resporailily for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibiity is to roview whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of

the Company's comgliance with ihe provisions of tne Regulations and report If it does rot and to
w“mmﬂlhmmdhm1mﬂkHMMH
Inguiries of the Company's personns: and review of various documents drepared by the Comaany Lo

comply with the Regulations.

43 8 part of o audit of the financial statements we are rogquired to ablain an understancing of the
sceounting and indernal control systems sulficient to plan the oudit and deweiop an effective audit
approach. We are not reguired to contider whether the Board of Directory’ stelement o internal
contral covers ail risks and controls of to form an oplnion on Ehe eftecliveness of such internsl
contrals, the Company’s corporate governance procedisres and riska.

The Regulations require Lhe Company to place before the Audit Commiltee, and upon
recommendation of the Audil Committes. place befora tha Board of Direclors for thedr review and
mnwmmtmm“nnmummmmmﬂm
Tequirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Direclors
ispon recommendalion of the Audlt Commiliee.

fased on our review, nothing has come to our atlention which causes us to belleve that the
Statement ol Comphance does not sopropristely reflect the Compary's compliance. in il material
respacts. with the requirements contalned In the Regulations as applicabie to the Company for the

ye&r enoed 31 Decomber 2023,

o1 ho AL

Chartered Accountants
Place: Natachl
Date: 17 May 2024

UDIN: CRI02310120vLIWGNQY

T T L R




Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2023

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Hegutations, 2019 (here-in-after reterred as 'the Hegulations') in the following manner:=

The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:

al Male Directors: six (6)
b Female Director: one (1)

The compaosition of the Board s as follows:

a) Independsant Directors:
I. Mr. Gordon Alan P Joseph
ii. Mr. Bune Rasmussen

b} Mon-executive Directors;

[. M. Hans Ole Madsen - Chairman of the Board
i Mr. Armmie Dzon Tablanie

i M. Jacob Christian Gulmann

v, Mr. Bilal Shahid

c) Bxecutive Director Chigfl Executive Officer:
Ms. Lirene Coloquio Mora-Suarez [Female Director]

* For the purposes of number of Indepandent Directors on the Board, the Company has not rounded up the fraction in
one-third as cnewith the view that within the existing composition of the Board comprising off  four non-executive
Directors, one Chief Executive Officer and with two - Independent Direclors |, the Board is adequately independent
commensuralewith the nesd of the company.

“* CEDwas appointed effective from 23 Cctober 2023

3.

£n

B

=

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company;

The Comparny has prepgared a Code of Conduct and has ensured thatl appropriate sleps have been taken o
disserninate it throughout the Cormpany along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The: Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant policies of the
Compary. The Board has ensured that complele record of particutars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been laken by the

Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevan] provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the
Regulations:;

The meatings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the requirerments
of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the
Board:
Tha Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance with the
Actand the Regulations;

During the year no Director has obtained Directors Training Certification as all the Board members have already
done with their training and certification;

The Board has approved appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Internal Audhit
inciuding their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and compled with relevant requirements
of the Regulations;
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The Chiet Financial Officer and the Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements belore
approval of the Board;

The Board has formed the following commitiess comprising of members given below:

al Audit Committes

[. N Rune Rasmussen, Chairman
ii. Mr. Arnie Dzon Tablante, Member
iii. Mr. Bilal Shahid, Member

b Human Resource and Remuneration Commities
. M Gordon Alan P Joseph, Chairman

I Mr. Hans-Ofe Madsen, Member

i, Ms. Lirene Cologuio Mora-Suarez, Member

) Risk Management Committes

[, N Gordon Alan P Josseph, Chairrman
ii. Mr. Hans-Ofe Madsen, Mermber

ii. Mr. Bilal Shahid, Member

The terms of reference of the aforesald commitiees have been formed, documented, and advised 1o the
committees for compliance;

Thefrequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

2 Audit Committee [Quarterly]
) Human Resource and Remuneration Commities [None]
c} Aisk Management Committes [Nane]

The Board has set up an effective ntermal audit function that 15 conaidered sullably expenenced for the purpose
and is conversan! with the poficies and procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under tha
Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAF) and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and ail their partnars are in compliance with Intemational Fedaration
of Acoountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAF and that they and the partners of the
firm invohved in the audit are not 2 close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of internal Audit, the Company Secretary or the
Directors of the comparny;

The: statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services

except in accordance with the Act, the requlaticns or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have

confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

We canfirm that all requirerments of regulations 3, &, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, B, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are
below

Requirement F:EQ Explanation

Approval of Company Secretary 20 The Board is looking for a suitably qualified and
expenenced person for the position of Company
Secrelary and the role is currently being performed
by the: Chief Firancial Officer.




Reqguirement

Cualifications of Head of Intemal Audit

Human Resource and Remuneration
Commities

Mr. Hans-0Ole Madsen
Chairman of the Board
Karachi

Dated: May 15, 2024

Palkistar international Container Terminal Limitsd
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28

Explanation

The Head of Internal Audit dogs not mest the
minimum gualification criteria prescribed by the
Regulations. However, he has suilable experence
wihich i sufficient given the status of the Company.

The Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee did not mee! durng the year as thers
wereno matters that required its attention,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinian

We have sudiled the snnexed fingnciel stalements of Pakilan Internationsl Container Terminal
Limited (the Company), which comprise fhe statemeant of financial position as at 31 Decamber 2023,
ard the statement of profit of loes. the statement of comarehensive income, the statement of changes
o aquily, the statement of cash flows lor the year then endsd, and notes to the financial statements,
inchading material accounting policy informaticn and other sxplanatosy information, and we state that
we have obtained all the information and ssplanations which, fo the best of our knowiedge and bebief,
wore neceisary lor L purpases of the audit.

in gur opinlon and to the best of aur information and according to the sxplanations given to us, the
statement of linancial position, the statement of profil or loss, the statement comprehensive Income,
the slatement of changes in eguily end thi slatement of cash llows together with Lhe notes ferming
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards 8s applicable In Pabistan and ghve
the informadion regui-ed by the Compandes Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner 50 required snd
respectively give a true and falr vlew of the state of the Company's alffairs &5 8l 31 December 2023
:::rmmwnmmmhmnmmhqmmummm th& year
enided.

Bagsis for Opinjon

We conducted our audt in pocordance with international Standards on Auditing (ISAs] a5 apphicable
in Paklstan, Our responsibilities under those stanlards are further described in the Avditor's
Responuibiithes fos the Audlt of the Finencisl Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of
the Company In accordance with the international Fihics Standards Board for Accountants' Coce of
Ethics for Professional Accountanis a4 adopted by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (Tre Coda) and wo have fulified our other ethical responsibilities in sccordance wah the Code.
We Duliewe thal the sudil sviderce we have obtained is sufficlent and approgriale Lo provide o basis far

ur oginkan.
Material Uncerisinty Related lo Going Concern

We graw attention to the matter disciosed in Note 2.3 Lo the accompanying financial stalements,
which describes the operating status of the Company post the expiry of the Concesslon Agresmant
with Kargerl Port Triust in respact of bulll, operate and transfer arrangements. The sald nole also
stases that the managemanl i considering ditferent viable business opportunities, and is of the view
that the current financiad and Bquidity copditian of the Company s sufficient Io mest Its cammitments
a0l othar operating cashilow requirements. However, the condilions stated in the aforementioned
note indicals the existonce of malerisl uncertainty thit may cast significant doubt on the Company's
abdity to cont'nue a5 3 going concem. Our opinion is not moditied In respect of this matter,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audil matters are those matters ihat, in our professional judgment, ware of most significance in
aur audit of the Fnancial statements of the current period, These mallers were addressed In the
conlent of our aisEt of the financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon. and

we do nol provide 3 separate opinion on these mattars.
Following & e i ety aucit matters:

L Contingencies

lr As 8t the reporting date, the Company has mmmmnml

various contingent liabilities in respect of | included, amongst ofhers.  oblained an
Income tax and sales tax related matters | understanding of the management's processes
and pending Ntigation from the concerned | and controls over litigations through meetings
mm-mmmuﬂm with the maragement and review of Lhe
fimancial statomanrds. mummummm'

Commmittes.

Due to the signdlicance of the amounts
Irveniwed I such matters and the inheran|
| uncertalntien in rewpect of thedr ullimate
outcome, the management judgements
and  eslenales In realion 1o such

contingencies may be comgiex. |

Accordingly, we have considered the
contingencies os & ey audd matter.

< Obtained and reviewed confirmations irom
the Company's external advisors for thalr
viows on the logal position of the Company
i nelation to the contingencies:

invalved our Internal tax professionas to
sseas mansgement’s conclsions on fas

matters and to evaluate the consistency of
mch conclusions with (he vews of the
external lap advisors engaged by the
Company, and

< Evatuated the adequacy of dsciosures made
In respect of ke contingencies n
accordance with the sequirements of the
Pnancial reporting standards as agalicable n
Pahistan, |

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Repor! Thereon
Management o responsible for the olher information. The other information comprises of information
Irciudied in the Annual Reporl; but does not inciude the financial statements and our suditor's repoct
tharean.

Dur ppirdan on Ine financlal statements doss nol cover the ather infarmation ann we do not exprews any
larm af sssurance conclusion theraon.

In connactian with our audit of the finandal statementy, our resporsiiy is o read the olher
information and. in dolng 50, condider whether the other information is matertally inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtalned In the audit or otherwite appears to Be materially

misatated. |1, hoased on Lhe work we have perfor meed, we concliptde that thane i a materlal misstademant
of this otter information, we are necuifed to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

M\
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Rosponsibilities of Management and Board of Direciors for the Financlal Statements

‘anagemeni is responsibée for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements
in sccordance with the accolnfing and repcrting standards a3 spplicable In Fekistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such Internai control a5 management
determines i necessary Lo enabile the preparalion of linancial statements that are free from matertal

missfatement, whelher dus bo fraud oF error,

In praparing the fmancal statements, management is respansible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as 3 godng concern, discicsing. as applicable, matters refated to going conoprm and using the
going concern basis ol accounting uniess management either intends to lgusiate (he Company or
to cease operations. or has no reafistic alternatihee Sul to do so.

Board of orectors (s responsible for overseeing the Company's financisl reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Stataments

Our atjectives ar e to obilain reasanabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whals are
frae from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
Includes our apinion. Reasonable sisurance is 3 gh [evel of assurance. bul is nat a guaranies that an

audil conducted In acoordance with ISAs a9 applicable in Pakistan will always defect & matera
msslatenent when & exisls, Misstalements can arss from fraud of error and are consdersd material

I, Indlviduadly or In the aggregate, they could remonably be eapecied lo Influence the econarmic
gecialons of users taken on the basis of thess financial stalementy.

As pard of an ausdit In accordance with 1SAS a5 applicable in Pakictan, we sxercice profesvional judomant
angd maintain o otessional sheplicsm throwghou! the sud], We slo;

» dentify and astess the risks of material misstatamant of the Ninanclal statements, whelher due
to Iraud of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo thase risks, and oblaln
auidl svidence that is sufticien] and aporoprisle o provide a basis for our oginjen. The risk of
not delecting a material missiatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from
@rmar, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intenmtional emissions. miwepresentations, or Me
overrine of internal control

« Obtain an understanding of Internal contrel relevant o [he atdll In arder bo deulgn audlt
procecures (hat are sppropriste In the circumstances. but rot for the purpose of expressing an
oalnion on the affectiveness of the Company's interral control,

= Evaluabe the aporopriatenass of accounting policles used and the reasanableness of accoenting
estimates and retaled chcioswres made by management.

= Conclude on the aporopriateness of management’s use of the goirg concern Basis of accaunting
and, hased on the audit mridence abtained, whelher & malerisl yncer lanly esists reated Lo avénis
of conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Company's abilily o continue 25 8 going
concern, I we conclude thal a matertal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw sttention in our
puditor s report ta the related disclosures In the financkal statements o, If such disciosures are
inadequate, to modify awr cpinlon. Dur condlusions are based on the sudit evidence oblained w to
the dals ol our sudilor's repart, Howawer, future svents or condltions may cause the Conipany to

cegss ta continue &5 8 galng conoerm.

« Evaluate the overadl peadantation, structure and content of the financial statements. inclading
ihe Fsciosares, and whether the financial slatements represent the undertying transactions and
evenls In 4 manner That achieves lair prewantation.
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We communicate wilh the board of directors regarding, amang cifer matters, the plansed scope and timing
of thwe aisit and significant audit finaings. including any significant deficlencles in internal control that
wi lentify turing our audit,

We ale provide Lhe boatt of directors with a statlement that we have complied with relmant sthicat

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with Ihem all refalionships and ofher matiers
Enat may ressanatily be thought 1o baar on out ingapangance, and whene applicable, retated sateguards,

From the matbere communicatod with e Do S of Direclons. we detey mine Lhode madters Lhat ween of mast
significance in the audil of the financal statements of e current period and are therelore the ey augt
matiers. We describe these matters in our awditor's report unless law or reguiation preciusdes public
disciosure sboul the matter or when. in extremely rare cirtumstances, we determing that & malter shauld
nal te commumicaled in o raport beesiuse the sdverss eonsesuences of doing 5o would ressonably be
wpected to oubweigh the public interest benedits of such communiCation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
Based on our auait, we further report that in cur apialon:

@) prope books of account have baen kept by the Company as reguired by [he Companes Act
2017 (XX of 2017

o) the slatement of financial pusition, the statemanl of profit or foss, the statement of

comprehensive income, the statement of changes In eguity and Lhe stalement of cash fows
together with the noles Ihéreon have been drown wp in conformity with the Companies Ast,
2017 (XX of 201 T)and are o agreement with the books of accoint and returns;

£ Investments made, expenditurs incurred and guarantees extended during Lhe yedr were lor
the purpese of the Company’s business: ang

) zakat deductible al source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (Xvill of 19801, was
deducied Dy the Company and deposited In the Céntral Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of the Ordinance,

The engagement partner on the acdit resulting in this ndependent auditonr's report |s Omer Chughtal

et ho AL

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Darte: 17 May 2024
UDIN: AROZF 101201008 AF
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Statement of Financial Position

Asat Decamber 31, 2023

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote ~——-= [RS in thousands) ——-
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty, plant and equipment 4 623,717
Intangibles 5 43,176
666,893
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools - net 6 - 571,821 |
Trade debts - net 7 8,533 648,929
Advances 8 66,183 T.270
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables g 844,553 252,814 |
Short-term investments - net 10 - -
Taxation - net 100,615 - |
Cash and bank balances 11 5,182,634 | 6,061,976
6,203,518 7.542.810
TOTAL ASSETS 6,203,518 8,209,703
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 12.2 1,001,532 1,081,532
Reserves 12.3 693,314 1,075,873
1,784, 846 2,167,405
MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Liability 13 - 69,556
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 14 2,730,671 3,129,954
Unclaimed dividends 133,265 79,152 |
Unpaid dividends 15 1,548,450 2,330,418
Currant portion of defarrad liability 6,286 -
Taxation - net _ - | 433,218
4,418,672 54972742
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,203,518 8,209,703
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 16

The annexed noltes from 1 lo 34 form an integral part of these financial slatements.

Chie utive Officer Chiet ﬁnLﬁ‘ma{ Officer IDiraclur

Pakistan international Conlainer Terminal Limited 31



Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote @~ - (Rs in thousands) ~———-

Revenue - net 17 6,392,051 12,024,182
Cost of services 18 {3,933,855) {6,863,138)
Gross profit 2,458,196 5,161,044
Administralive expenses 19 (422,847) (625,980)
Other expanses 20 (119.837) (76,518)
Finance costs 21 (1,833) {1.8625)
Other income 22 1,460,170 546,313
Profit before taxation 3,373,849 5.003,234
Taxation 23 (1,573,345) (2,273,794)
Profit after taxation 1,800,504 2,728,440

1341 1:1: 1 IRt
Earnings per ordinary share - basic and diluted 24 16.50 25.01

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chie utive Officer Chiet ﬁnLﬁ‘ma{ Officer IDiraclur

an : Pakistan Intemational Container Tanminal Limitad



Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2023

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
------- {Rs in thousands) =-=--
Profit afler taxation 1,800,504 2,729,440
Other comprehensive Income -
1,800,504 2,729,440

Total comprehensive income

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chie utive Officer Chiet ﬁnLﬁ‘ma{ Officer IDiraclur

Fakistar intarnational Container Terminal Limited



Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

e Capital || Revenus
gt resaerye reserve
subscribed Canital t Total Total
and paid-up e Unappropriated | reserves "
capital R profits
reserve fund| |
(Rs in thousands)
Balance ag at Decomber 31, 2021 1,081,532 180,000 1,451,943 1631843 2723475
Profit after taxation ' - | - 2729440 || 2,729.440| 2729440 |
Other comprehensive income _ - - l - - . -
Total comprehensive income c < 2,729,440 2720440 2,729,440
Final cash dividend for the year
anded December 31, 2021
{@ Rs 9.00/- per ordinary share 5 S (982,378)  (982.378)  (982.378)

Interim cash dividend for the quarter

ended March 31, 2022

@ Rs & 5/- per ordinary share - - (927.802)  (927.802)  (927.802)
Interim cash dividend for the quarter

ended June 30, 2022

{@ Rs 5/- per ordinary share = - (545,766)  (545766)  (545,766)
Interim cash dividend for the quarter

ended September 30, 2022

@ Rs 7.6/- per ordinary share . % (829,564)  (B829,564)  (829,564)
Balance as at December 31, 2022 1,091,532 180,000 B95,873 1,075,873 2,167 405
Prafit after taxation - - 1,800,504 | 1,800,504 1,800,504
Other comprehensive income = 2 - - -
Total cum;u'ahanslm income = - 1,800,504 1,800,504 1,800,504

Interim cash dividend for the guarter
ended June 30, 2023
@ Rs 20.00/- per ordinary share - - (2,183,063) (2,183,063) (2,183,063)

Balance as at December 31, 2023 1,091,532 180,000 513,314 693,314 1,784,846

The annexed notes fram 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

" / -
B ! s 3 o T
Chie uthee Officer Chief Finaficial Officer ‘Director

34 Pakistan Intemational Container Terminal Limited:




Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 29

Taxes paid

Compensated |eaves paid

Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

13.1

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Markup on savings accounts received

Net cash generated from / {used in)
Investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid
Net cash used In financing activities

Net (decrease) | Increase In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(A

Chief ﬁn;ﬁ'crai Oifficer

b "w/
F
Ghietﬁ:i‘ve Orficer

Fakistar international Container Terminal Limited

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
------ (Rs in thousands) ——
2,841,321 5,884,188
{2,107,173) (1,567 641)
(67,144) (1,954)
{1,833) {1.625)
665,171 4,312,968
(58,495) | (382,777) |
7,565 19,367 |
1,417,334 444,845
1,366 404 51,435
(2,910,917) (2.464,852)
{2,910,917) (2,464 852)
(879,342) 1,929,551
6,061,976 4132,425
5,182,634 6,061,976
A S
rI}irreu;h:w
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND OPERATIONS

1.1, Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) was incorporated in
Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the
Company is situated at Plol no. 25/1-A, Street no. 5, Muslimabad, Jamshed Town, Karachi

1.2, The Company is a subsidiary of ICTS! Mauritius Limited whereas its ultimate parent company
is International Container Terminal Services Inc., a company incorporated in Philippines.,

1.5, The Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) "Concession Agreement” which the Company had
with Karachi Port Trust (KPT) for the exclusive construction, development, operations and
management of a commaon user container terminal at Karachi Port was for a period of twenty-
ane years commencing June 18, 2002. This Concession Agreement expired on June 17,
2023 and the terminal has been taken over by KPT on June 18, 2023. In accordance with the
Concession Agreemenl between KPT and PICT, PICT is required lo keep ils legal existence
for a minimum of 3 years following the expiry of the Concession Agresment. During this
period, the Company is on a regular basis scanning the market for any financially attractive
husiness opportunities compatible with related provisions in its constitutional document. The
Company was actively invelved in a complex handover procedure with KPT, including the
smaoth transition to the new Concession helder and the work was being performed on a cost
compeansatory basis.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1, Statement of compliance

These financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, Approved accounting standards
comprise of such Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Beard (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting
Standards (IFASs) issued by Instilute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of and directives issued
under the Act In case requirements differ, the provisions and directives of the Act, shall
prevail.

2.2. Basis of measuremenl

These financial statements have been prepared under tha historical cost convention unless
otherwise specifically staled.

2.3. Expiry of Concession Agreement and Going Concern Assumption

The Concession Agreament with KPT in respsct of built, operate and transfer on berths 6 o
9 which was for a period of twenly-one years commencing June 18, 2002 expired on June
17, 2023, Since the past several years, the Company had raised the matter for early
exlension In Concession term and expansion of infrastructure, with KPT and other relevant
guartars of the Government of Pakistan based on the precedent existing whereby KPT had
provided early extension in the Concession term and expansion in the infrastructure to
another Container Terminal. The Company took legal actions to protect the rights of the
Company and to pursue extension of the concession agreement. The Company had
instituted a legal suil before the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) seeking exlension of
the concession term. However, this legal suit culminated vide the order of the HCS after
various hearings in June 2023, whereby the Company's appeal was dismissed by the larger
bench of HCS. The terminal operated by the Company at Berths 6 to 9 pursuant to the
Concesslon Agreement was ils key operational assel and the fundamentals of fulure
business operations have ceased with the expiry of the Concession Agreement. However,

36 Pakistan Intemational Container Tarminal Limited



in accordance with the concession agreement, the Company is required to keep its legal
existence for a minimum of 3 years from the expiry of the concession agresment. In view of
the above circumstances, the Board of Direciors (Bol) has assessed the going concern
status of the Company and its appropriateness in the preparation of these financial
statements. For this purpose, the BoD has considerad the following factors:

i} the management of the Company is evalualing an expression of interest received from
a company which ig a license holder of an Off Dock Terminal issued by Pakistan
Customs ('the Licensee’) and is seeking technical cum management services in relation
o operations and centaingr handling proposed to be carried on by the Licensea, In the
event, the management concludes that the above business proposition is not feasible or
implementable due to legal or other reasens, the management would identify new
business opportunities with the support of its parent entity with the aim to continue ils
business interest in Pakistan,

il} the financial and liguidity condition of the Company are sufficient to meest its
commitments In the foreseeable future and Is also complimented through letter of
financial support from the parent entity; and

i) the financial projections of the Company prepared for the period up to 30 June 2025 are
based on the assumption thal the business opportunity referred to in poinl {i) above |s
likely to malerialize.

The above facts and circumstances indicale the existence of material uncertainties in relation
to the implementation of the business plan and hence cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, after considering the above
factors, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Moreover, the Company in accordance with its accounting policies has also performed a
comprehensive analysis of any potential adjustmants in thess financial statements and have
incorporated the same where reguired.

2.4 Adoption of amendments to approved accounting standards effective during the year

There are certain amendments issued by International Accounting Standards Board (|ASE)
that are mandatory for the Company's accounting perieds beginning on or after January 01,
2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and therefore not detailed in these financial statements, except as
described below:

A3 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policles
(Amendments)

The ameandmants to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materality Judgements
provide guidance and examoles to help entiies apply matenality judgements o accounting
policy disclosures, The amendments aim lo help enfities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by replacing the reauirement Tor entities to disclose their
‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disciose their ‘material’ accounting
policies and adding guidance on how entitles apply the concepl of materiality in making
decisions aboul accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies,
but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's
financial statements.

2.5 Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yoet
affective

The following standards and amendments with respect to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard or interpretation;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

IASE Effective
date
(annual pericds
beginning on.or

Standards Interpretations and amendments after)
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-
IAS1 "~ currant (Amendments) January 01, 2024
IFRS 16 - Lease Liabllity in a Sale and Leaseback
{Ameandmants) January 01, 2024
1AS7 and - Disclosures: Supplier Finance  Amrangemants
IFRS 7 {Ameandmeants) January 01, 2024
IFRS 17 - |nsurance Contracts January 01, 2026
IFRS 10/ - Sale or Contribution of Assels between an Investor
IAS 28 and ils Associale or Joint Venlure - Amendment o Not yel finalised
IFRE 10 and 1AS 28
1A5 21 Lack of exchangsability — Amendments January 01, 2025

Further, following new standards have besn issued by [ASE which are yel to be nolified by
the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
1ASE effective
date [annual
periods beginning
on or after)

Standard

FRS 1 _ First-time Adoption  of  International  Financial
Reporting Standards
Presanfation and Disclosure in Financial
IFRS 18 © Statements

January 01, 2004

January 01, 2027

2.6, Significant accounting judgmeants, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial siatements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise s judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounling policies.
Estimates and judgmants are continually evaluated and are basad on historic experiance and
other factors, Including expectalion of future events thal are belleved (o be reasonable under
the circumstances. In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the
managemeant has made the Mllowing sstimates and judogments which are significant 1o the
financial statements:

a) taxation (note 3.4);

b} determining the method of depreciation, residual values and useful lives of operating fixed
assels (note 3.1);

c) intangibles (note 5);

d} determining the provision for ebsolescence of sloras, spare parts and loose lools (nole
6);

e} determining the allowance for expected credit losses (note 7):

fi  recognition of provision of deferred liability (note 13); and

g} expected outcome of contingancies (note 16.1).

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING FOLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted by the Company in the preparation of these financial
statements are as follows!

3.1, Property, plant and equipmant
3.1.1, Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less acocumulated depraciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

a8 : Pakistan Intemational Container Tanminal Limitad



3.4,

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write
off the histarical cost of the assets less their estimated residual values over their esfimated
useful lives or the remaining term of the Concession Agreement, whichever is lower, at the
rates specified in note 4.1 to these financial statements. The Company was bound to transfer
cartain assets to KPT under the Concession agrasment,

2. Capital work-in-progress

These are stated al cost less any impairment In value. All expenditures connected with
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period including advances to
suppliers and contractors are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets
as and when these assets are available for use,

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Cost is determined using first-in-first-out (FIFO} basis except for those in transit which are
stated at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is
made annually in the financial statements for slow moving and cbsolete items if required.

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist cash in hand and
balances with banks.

Taxation

Currant

Prowision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in
accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after considering rebates and tax credits
available, if any, and includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

In making the estimates for income taxes, the Company takes into account the current income
lax law and decisions laken by appellale aulhonbies on cerlain issues in the past. There may
be varlous matters where the Company's view differs with the view taken by the income tax
department at the assessment slage and where the Company considers thal its view on items
of a material nature is in accordancs with the law. Tha diference between the potential and
actual tax charge, il any, 15 disclosed as a contingent liability.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary
differences arising at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying ameunts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax fiabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences lo the extent that it is probable
that the fulure taxable profits will be available against which the assels may be utilised,
Deferred tax assetls are reduced Lo the extent that it s no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised, Unrecognized deferred tax asseis are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. The
management cansider tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities,

3.5. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, and it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will ba required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can he
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively to reflect
the current best estimate.

3.6, S=gment reporting

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment
which is consistent with the internal reporting of the Company.

3.7. Functional and presentation currency

These financial stalemems are presented in Pakistani Rupes which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

3.8, Financial instruments

A financial instrument s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets

Financial assets include trade debts, advances, deposits, short term investiments and
other receivables that are carried at amortized coslt.

Impairment [ expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180
days past due. The Company recognizes expected credit loss allowance based on
simplified approach for its financial assels measured at amortized cost.

if} Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include trade creditors, technical service fee payable, staff related
liabilities, payable to port authorities, advances from customers, workers welfare fund
payable and sales tax payable that are carried at amortized cost.

3.9. Ravenue
As per the business principles, revenue from contracts with customers is recognised net of
rebates, if any, when services arg rendered to the customer at an amount that reflacts the

consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

The performance cbligations of port berth oparations are satisfied, and payment is generally
dug upon complation and billing of the services.
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3.10, Other income

Profit on deposits | saving accounts are recognized on effective interest rate basis. Other
income is recognised on accrual basis.

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote e [R5 i1 thousands) ———-—-
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Oparating fixed assels 4.1 - 375,833
Capital work-in-progress 4.2 - 247 BB4
- 623,717

4.1. Operating fixed assets

DECEMBER 31, J23

conat ACCUMLLATED DEPRECIATION
Charge Wiritlan
Fuar thia
An wl Aa al Aaal yEar A= il
Jamunry Decemisar Janumry el Disposals Docomber
o, 2023 CHupasais 51, 23 M, 2023 413 TEET 11, 2maY
"% in thouzands|
Leasshold land & .
huoildng 247 547 - - 247 847 aaram 0 G446 2aT 84T - B33
Lessehild - :
improvaments. 1,935,627 23,611 (1,059,233) - 1,880,710 ER.5ZR (1 259238 - - 5-20
Carilaing | z H
lesrninal
hardling {
warkghap -
eqligmenl* 5,652,652 2551 (4.262,370) 2,705,278 5503854 OTN.TS4 [3,2613T70) 2Z,704.278 - G=20
410,445 - . =
Poft poser GETATT i ) - 658478 122]'4!; tm:aza - - L L]
gEneration 20,547 (Trr.aee
Vonichs 27,571 1 (2781 . BAER GAED (2TE12) . - 20
Ciommipulers and ) ) : :
oihar - -
edquignmenl 364,097 A3 {448,511} 15,300 363,025 100,856 ‘Hﬂ,ﬂ'ﬁ:l 15,380 - 18-33.33
*48,553 -
Furnibure and 2,202 (33461
fixturas 34,481 . iERAET) - 343 : - 183333
0,164,852 33,023 (6,500,116} 2,966,215 8,783,119 652102 (6.500,096) 2,066.215
273,156 = " -
Tala TS B A 3086 5E TATE5 10 g3 !'r'.:'___u_'_i S
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DECEMEBER 31, 2022

COET ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Addilions |
“ransfors Charge Wiritisn
fram Apal for the Ag al down valug
sl capital December As al yaar Diecemise as at Depreciation
damuary  workdn- n, danuary  [nofe r3,  Oecember 31, ralm
01,2022 progress  Disposals il 0,202 442 Dispesals 2022 ik [T ARPUM
{R= in thowsandsa) %
Leirsubaid tard &
hualding 247 547 - - 247547 24748 23942 - 237 5 & 46 8,33
Lemsehald
Pyt 7,934 875 405 (23} 1935627 1,776,230 114,399 (19} 1.800,710 4.7 il
5T
Conlainer |
t&rminnl
hending /
workahon
eguiprent F633 287 &0, 207 (B4, T95) 5A52 852 5096281 SE2IERE B4, TaE) 5553 A58 250, ToA Se20
* 263,943
Prarl plwes G4, 037 Aa0 " LiliE 576,020 79,158 = BES1TE 32,199 510
parEration " 22880
Walschas 20,087 3.805 [247) rFan 18T 2830 (178 1,102 3,178 an
* L8E
Compubars and
aihar
Suplipment 358,102 28,178 12,351) 3ga T I AT 43,541 11,2808) 363025 .82 10-33.33
* a7
Fumiture ani
Mabures 38,801 B4 16,47 2) 33,481 15,504 1,780 {6,005 11253 2282 1N-33.31
CBEBEA0E  ToTeE  (S3ESE)  81GA 852 0018148 BATMT  (B3076) DTEI I IFSAE
" AER VD6
Tew  _BAVGS0S 385904 (§38%h| 9169857 8033148 BAT04T (8507 BT011 TSI

*  Transfers from capital work-in-progress.

4.1.1. Disposals of operating fixed assets

Gain | [loss)
Accomiulaled  Wrlteh Biule o digpodala Parbcilars of Moda ol
Particulars Cont depreclation doawn value proceeds nel unir DHepasal
A% in thousaniis |
ftams having writben down
walue of [ess than
R, 000, 0o

Falra) i, 509, 561 6,509, 544 17T T, atd T.mT W adiols Variows
P0aa 43 ESE 93,078 TE2 18,387 18.585 Various Variaus

4.1.%. Deprecialion charge for the year has been allocated as under:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote e [R5 IN thoUusaNds) s
Cost of services 18 613,974 762,342
Administrative expenses 19 68,218 B 84705
€82,192 847 047

4.1.3. This includes fransfer of concession assets upon expiry of Congession Agreement at a
token value of Re 1 .
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Note smeeees (RS In thousanes) —=——-
4.2. Capital work-in-progress
4.2.1. Mavemenl
Opening balance 247,884 275 287
Additions during the year 44,913 261,703
Transferred to operating fixed assets (273,156) (289, 106)
Transferred fo expenses (19,641} -
Closing balance 422 - 247 BE4
4.2.2. Category wise breakup
Leasehold improvemeants - 38,903
Container / terminal handling /
workshop equipment - 112,028
Fort power generation - 89,890
Yehicles - -
Computers and other equipment - 7,063
- 247 884
INTANGIBLES
Intangibles 5.1 = 43,178
5.1. Intangibles
— . DECEMBER 31, 2023
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Writien
dowwn
Charga valiie as
At Disposals A% &l FLE for the Diepanais Al al Amartmation
Janiaey Decnmbiar Janiary FERF i5.3) Dacember  Decamber rata i
0, 26 31, 2023 01, 2023 {note 5.2) 31. 2023 31, 2023 arrurm
- [R= in thousards) Y
Camputer 235,680 (169,526) 116,158 242 504 43176 (169 526) 116,154 70-33.33
saftware
Project
davalopman
cokt 37.889 37.889 37.BBY - 3T,BE9 20
Total 323,569 (165,526 154.043 280,393 43,176 [189.526) 154,043
DECEMBER 31, 2022
ACCUMULATED
COaT AMORTISATION
Charge
A mt As at As gt for the Az at Amortization
January December  January yEar Decembe  Written down value as rate per
01, 2022  Additions 31,2022 01, 2022 {note 5.2) r31, 2022 ot December 31, 2022 annum
{Rs in thousands) %
Ciurmplitar 241,404 285,680 219,825 22,679 242504 43,176 20-33.33
saflware A4, 276
Praject
develaprient
cagl 37,889 - 37,888 37,869 - 37,889 - Fill
Tatal 279,293 44 FT6 323,669 257,714 ZZEE?'E 280,391 43,176
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5.2 Amaortisation charge for the yvear has bean allocatad as under:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Note @ — - ([R5 in thousands ) ———
Cost of services 18 38,858 20411
Administrative expensas 18 4,318 2,268

43,178 22679

5.5 This includes transfer of concession assals upon expiry of Concession Agreemant at a loken

valug of Re 1.
Dzcember 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote wwv |Rs in thousands) ——
6. STDRES. SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TODOLS - nat

Stores, spare parts and lposa wols 6.1 221,812 560,847

Fuel and lubricants - 40,069
221,842 BO0.916

Provision for obsolescence (2211,612) (29,085)

- ar1E

6.1 Stores, spares and loose tools amounting Rs 284 44 million were transferred upon expiry of
Concassion Agreemant at the loken value of Re 1.

Dacamber 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Note {R5 in thousands) ——-
T TRADE DEBTS - not
Unsecured
Considared good ¥2 8,533 f48.929
Considered doubtiul 13,188 1,474
22,721 650,403
Allowance for expected credil insses {13,188) i1475]
7.1 9,533 548,929
7.1, The aging of unimpaired trade debts as at December 31 is as follows:
Nalthar Pasi due but nol impairod
past due
nor Within 91 to 180 Owver 180
Tutal impaired 90 days dnys days

(Rs in thousands) -——————

Related parlies = = = = =
Other than related parties 9,533 - - 5,447 4,086
2023 9,533 . - 5,447 4.086
Related partles 3,278 2,255 665 - 358
Other than related parties 645,651 501,506 51,053 1,763 1,239
2022 648,929 i 5'93&51 ; 51 [TEE ) 1!?53 1,597
7.2 These ara generally on a tarm ranging from 15 to 60 days.
December 31 December 31,
2023 2022
MNote === {5 in thousands) ——
a. ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good
Suppliers and coniracions 8.1 66,147 5,263
Employess 36 ) 2,007

66,183 7270
8.1 This includes advances made to fual suppliers.
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8. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Note - (5 in thousands) ---——-

Deposits — considered good 29,619 28,314
Prepayments 1,852 121,977
ther Receivables - considered good
Insurance claim receivahle - 2,124
Accrued markup 85,874 72 560
Receivable from KGTL 9.1 582,205 -
Others 144,303 27,839

813,082 102,523

844,553 252 814

9.1, This represents amount due from Karachi Gateway Terminal Limited (KGTL) against terminal

managemenl services under Managemeanl Services Agreemenl

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Note ~ {Rs in thousands) ——
10. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS — net
Amortised cost
Certificate of investments (COls) 43,000 43,000
Allowance for expected credit losses 10.1 (43,000)

_ (43,0000

10.17. Represents investment in COls of Saudi Pak Leasing Company (the investee company), The
investee company made default in repayment against COls in August 2009 due o serious
financial and liquidity crunch reportedly being faced by it. Due to uncertainties involved, the
Company as a matler of prudence has carried impairment provision in these financial staterments.
However, the Company is continuously pursuing for the recovery of the investments amount,

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
MNate weeeee [R5 (N thOUSANOS) e
11. CASH AND BANK BALAMNCES
With banks in;
current accounts 96,714 91.041
savings accounts 1.1 5,084,672 5,851 555
112 5,181,386 5,042 508
Cash and pay orders in hand 1,248 119,380
9,182,634 6,061.976

11.1 These carry profil al rales ranging from 19.5 ta 20.5 percent (2022: B.25 o 15.80 percent) per

annum.

11.2 This includes Rs 4,580.87 million (2022: Rs 5557.34 million) deposited with Islamic shariah

compliant banks,
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12. SHARE CAPITAL

12.49. Authorised capital
Docamber 31, December 31, Decomber 31 December 31.
2023 2022 2053 2022
—— (Mumber of shares) —— v (A& in thousands) ——

182,000,000 182,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10v- each 1,820,000 1,820,000

18,000,000 18,000,000 Preference shares of Re 104 each 180,000 180,000
200,000,000 200,000 000 2,000,000 2,000,000

12.2. Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Docember 31, December 31, December 31 December 31.
2023 2022 2023 2022
== (Mumber of shares) — Note —-— (Rsin thousands) —--—-
Ordinary shares of
Rs 10/- each
63,761,200 63,761.200 issued for cash 63v.612 637612
33,152 352 33,352,352  issued as banus shares 333,524 333524
12,039,600 12,039,600 Issued for consideration
other than cash 1221 120,396 120,396
100,153,152 109,153,152 1.081.532 1.091.532

12.2 1. Represent shares issued in consideration for maobile harbour cranes, port egquipment and &
vehicie o Pramier Mercantile Services (Pvl) Limited.

12.2.2. The voling rights are In proportion o shareholding of the shareholders

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
MNate ——— [R5 In thousands)] ——
12.3. Resarves
Capital resenye
Capital redemplion resarve fund 1231 180,000 180, (0

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profits 1232 513,314 595,873
653,314 1.075.873

12.3.1. The capital redemgption resersa fund can be utllized by the Company In accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and any applicable reguiations thersin,

12.3.2 The shareholders are enfitted to receive all distributions including dividends and other
entitiemeants in the form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by thi Company,

Decamber 31, December 31,
2023 2022
MNote = [R5 in (housands) ———
13, DEFERRED LIABILITY
Prowision for compensated leave absences 134 69,556
13.1. Movament
Opening balance 68,550 63,597
Accrual made during the year 3,674 7813
73,430 71,510
Payments made during the year (67.144) (1,854}
Current portion of deferred Hability (6,286) -
- 69,566

Closing balance
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Decamber 31, December 31,

2023 022
MNote s [R5 in thousands) -—=—
14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 14.1 Ta5 67T 718,514
Technical services lee payable 14.2 - 08,513
Staff related liabilities . 145,543
Fayable to part autharities 45,708 574,876
Aceriad liabiitias 1,482 T8 BTE. 326
Cther liabiiities: - )
Advances from customers 40,808 143.018
Workers' Welfare Fund 320,541 | | 229,541
Sales tax payable i, 092 26,380
Others £2,046 6243
456, 487 506,182
2,730,671 3,129,954

14,1, This Includes Rs 355.54 million {2022: Rs 20612 million) payable to ICTSI, Inc., Rs 69.26
million (2022: Rs 55.12 million) payable fo (G T31 Limited - ROHG, Rs 53,72 million (2022 Rs
39.44 million) payable to ICTSI Limited, Rs 1.85 million (2022: Rs 0.40 millien) payable to
ICTSI Middle East DMCC.

14.2. This reprasents technical services fes payable (0 1ICTS1 Mauritiug Limited.
15. UNPAID DIVIDENDS

15.1. Represents interim cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2023 which remained
unpaid 1o the Company's foreign shareholders including associated companies dus fo
pending regulatory approvals.

16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
16.1. Contingencies

16.1.1. The Trusteas of the Port of Karachi (KPT) filed a civil suit 12052006 against the
Company on September 13, 2006, in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (HCS)
cltaiming a sum of Rs 304.5 million along with the inlerest, as defaull paymant of
wharfage and penaity thereon, for the alleged mis-declaration of the category of goods
on the import of Ship to Shore Cranes and Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes in 2004, Gn
April 24, 2017, HCE passed tha judgment and decree in faver af the Caompany and
ordered that KPT is not entifed o the ameount of wharfage charges claimed by it On
June 03, 2017, KPT filed an appeal 2872017 against the aforesaid HCS' judgment
before the Divisional Bench of HCS. Upon advice of the Company's legal advisor,
managemen! believes that there is no meril in this claim and accordingly no provision
in respect of abova has baan made in thesa financial statements,

16.1.2. Tha Company has filed an interpleader civil suit 827/2007 on June 29, 2007 before
HCE against the Deputy District Officer, Excise and Taxation (ODDO0) and the Trusless
of KPT in respect of demand raized by the DDO on the Company to pay propadty lax
out of the Handiing, Marshalling and Siorage (HMS) charges payable to KPT
amaunting to Rs 346 million for the period from 2003 1o 2007, In compliance with tha
Order of HC 3, the Company deposited the amount with Nazir of HCS, out of amount
withheld by the Company from HMS charges billed by KPT, In 2014, another demand
was mada by the DD amounting to Rs 961 millien for the period 2008 to 2014, On
an application filed by the Company for directions, HCS ordered for deposit of the
aforementioned amount out of HMS chargas billed by KPT. The Company complisd
with the order of HCS. In 20115, HGS issued further arders directing the Company to
depaosit the remaining HWS charges due and payvable with Mazir of HCS in quarterly
instalimants. Accordingly, the Company complied with the order of HCS, The amount
deposited with Nazir of HCE is nefied off with the HMS charges payable to KPT. The
decision of the suit is still pending and the Company’s legal advisar believes that thera
may be no adverse iImplication for depasiting the paymants due to KPT with Nazir of
HCS in view of complying with the HCS's order. Accordingly, no provision has been
mada in this respect in thase financial statements,
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(613 In 217, the Assistant Commissioner Sindh Revenus Board (AC-SRB) under Sindh
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 raised a demand of Hs 514.4 million along with
penalty and default surcharge, for tax penods Janusary 2013 to December 2094 on
exempt services provided by the Company. The Company filed an appeal with
Commissioner Appeals - 3RB which s pending for hearing. The tax advisor of the
Company is of the view that the Company has a strong defence and appeal will be
decided in favor of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has not made any
pravision in respect of the above demand in these financial statements,

1604, In 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deamed
assassment of the Company for the tax year 2016 by passing an order under section
122(5) of Ihe Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowancses [
additions to the taxable income and tax credils claimed by the Company and raised
an income tax demand of Rs 222 2 million. The Company filed an appeal before CIR-
A who had decided the appeal pardly in favor of the Company. Being aggrieved by
the decision of CIR-A, the Company as well as the tax department filed the appeals
befora ATIR which are pending for adjudication. The Company has also sought stay
from HCE against the demand craated by ACIR after appeal effect proceadings. HCS
vide |ts final arder directad the ACIR not 1o take any coercive recovery measures till
the finalization of appaal bafore the ATIR which is pending for adjudication, The tax
advisor of the Company 15 of the view thal the issuss involved in the appeaal will bea
decided in favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision In respect of excess
demand raised by ACIR has been made in these financial stalemeants

16.1.5. Bection 144 of Customs Act, 1969 was amended through Finance Act. 2013 effective

from July 01, 2013, according to which port authorities shall provide at its own cost
adequate security and accommodation to customs staff for residential purposes,
offices, examination charges, detenfion and siorage of goods and for other
deparimental requirements o be determined by the Collector of Cusloms and shall
pay ulility Bills, rent and Exes in respect of such accomimodation,
The Company through s legal advisor filed a Joint pebition with other temminal
oparators and challenged the applicability of the afarementioned ameandment in law
before High Court of Sindh (HCS) which granted an intenim order in favor of the
terminals in Movember 2013, In January 2020, HCS dismissed the joint petition.
howsver, suspendead the judgment for filling an appeal before the Supreme Court of
Pakistan (SCP). The Company has filed a joint Civil Appeal with other tarminal
operators challenging the Impugned HES Judgement before SCP. On March 03,
2020, 5CF suspended the operation of the impugned |udgment and granted leave to
appaal. The lagal advizor of the Company is of tha opinicn that the Company has a
reasonable chance of success in this case. Accordingly, no provision has baen made
in this respect in these financial statements,

1616, In2020, while completing the audit proceedings for the fax vear 2015, DCIR amended
the deemed assessment of the Company by passing an order under section 122(1)
of the Income Tax COrdinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances/additions to the
taxabla income and tax cradits claimed by tha Company and raised an income tax
demand of Rs 498290 million. The Company filed an appeal befora CIR-A who parily
decided the appeal in Tavor of the Company. Being aggarieved by the decision of CiR-
A, the Company filed the appeal before ATIR which is pending for adjudication. The
tax advisor of the Company 15 of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will
be decided in favor of the Company, Accordingly, no provision In respect of the
aforementioned demand raised by DCIR has been made in the financial statements,

16.1.7. In 2023, the Deputy Commissioner Sindh Revenus Board (DC-SRE) issued show
cause notices for the financial year 2016 and 2017 under Sindh Sales Tax on
Services Act, 2011 wherein demand of Rs 323 million and Rs 246 million have baen
raised on axempt services providad by the Company. The Company challenged the
subject nolices hafore HCS and has soughl stay against the demand. The tax advisor
of the Company is of the view that the Company has a strong defence. Accordingly,
the Company has nol made any provision in respect of the above amounts in these
financial statemeants.
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16.1.8

16.1.8:

In 2023, ACIR amended the deemed assessment of the Company for the tax year 2022 by
passing an order under section 122(54) of tha Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made
certain disallowances / additions to the taxable income and raiged an income tax demand of
s 216.19 million. Being aggrieved by the decision of ACIR, the Company filed the appeal
before CIR-A which is pending for adjudication before CIR(A) - The tax advisor of the
Company s of the view that the issues involved in the appesl will be decided in favor of the
Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned demand raised by
ACIR has been made in these financial statements.

The Company s defending varicus suits, other than those disclosed above, filed against it In
various courts in Pakistan. The Company's management is confident, based on the advice
of itz legal advisors, that thesa suits will be decided in the Company's favor,

Decembeor 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote s [R5 i1 thousands) ———
16.2. Commitments
18.2.1. Commitments for capital expenditure - 86,714
16.2.2, Outstanding letters of guarantees 278,354 392,785
16.2.2, Letters of credil
Utilizad . 130,733
Lnutifized 300,000 169,267
REVENUE
Revenue from por operations 7.120,549 13,790,361
Terminal managament fee 102,489 -
Sales tax 17.1 (830,967  (1,766.179)
6,392,051 12,024,182

17.1. Includes Rs 29.78 million (2022: Rs, 76.56 million) collected from customers on behalf of KPT

in respect of sales tax on wharfage charges.

December 31, December 31.
2023 2022
MNote = == |Fs in thousands) ——
COST OF SERVICES
Salaries, wages and other benafits 440,054 699,283
Provident fund contribution 9,396 18,133
Staff training - 2,531
Terminal handling and services 350,326 733,165
Foyalty 18.1 TR RN 1,204,723
Handling, Marshalling and storage charges 16.1.2 171.874 214,248
Fuel and power 740,203 1,336,053
Stores, spares and other maintenance charges 509,296 487 730
Provision for obsolescencea in stores, spare parts and E .
loose tools 192,717 )
Technical services fee - 07,305
Rent, rates and taxes 90,607 296 498
Insurance 17265 199,326
Softwara maintenance chargas 76,853 102,751
Office maintenance 17.833 21,820
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle running expensas 11221 24,806
Communication, printing and stationery 1133 2,787
Litilities 205 1,169
Depreciation and amoriisation 413 &52 652,832 782,753
Others 18 829 18,047
3,933,855

18.1. Royalty paid to KPT under the Concession Agreament.
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Mote —— (Rs in thousands) ——
19. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benafits 59.478 183,832
Provident fund contribution 4,596 8,869
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle
TUnning expenses 19,123 42,277
Legal and professional charges 64,6899 15,847
Auditors” remuneration 181 18,599 12,870
Securily expenses 28,325 44 8637
Insurance 6,513 17,353
Office maintenance 53,330 65.254
Advertising and public relations T.675 34,992
Communication, printing and stationery 12,742 31,369
Utilities 961 5468
Depreciation and amortization 413852 72,536 86,973
Fees and subscription 15,353 17,895
Others 60,717 58.344
427 B4T 625,980
19.1. Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory Audit Fee 3,019 2415
Limited scope reviews and other certifications 5,305 3.051
Tax advisory services 8,385 6,702
Oul of pockel expenses B30 702
: 18,599 12.870
20, OTHER EXPENSES
Charge for expected credil losses 11,714 -
Exchange loss - net 108,123 76,518
119,837 76,518
21, FINANCE COSTS
Bank charges 1,833 1,625
1,833 1,625
22. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Markup on savings accounis 221 1,430,748 507,867
Income from non-financial assels
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets — net 7,548 18,585
Others 21,874 19,861
1,460,170 546,313

22.1. Thig includes Rs 1,326.47 million (2022: Rs 403.81 million) profit earned from bank accounts
under profil arrangament with Islamic shariah complianl banks.
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Doecember 31, December 31,

2023 2022
MNote — e (Rs in thousands) —-—
23 TAXATION
Cumment 231 1,235,243 1,859 900
Deferred 232 . 189,190
Priar 231 338,102 214,704
1,573,345 2,273,794

231, The Finance Act, 2023 has introduced certain amendments relating o taxation of companias,
As per these amendments, rate of super tax on high eaming persons has been enhanced
retrospactively from tax year 2023 and onwards. Accordingly, the Company has recognised
supar tax expense for prior year as well as current year in the statement of profit or loss.
Therefore, these include aggregate super tax of Rs 654,83 million (2022 Rs 437.88 million),

23.2. As of the date of the statement of financial position, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs.
418.63 million {2022: Rs. 428.7 million) in respect of decelerated tax deprecialtion has not
bean recognized in these financial statemenits.

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
(Rs-in thousands) —

23.3. Relationship betwean tax expense and
accounting profit:

FProfit before taxation 3,373,849 5003234
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29%  (2022; 29%) 978,146 1,450,938
Mel effect of income tax provision relating 1o orior
yaars 338,102 214,703
Unrecognized deferred lax asset (67,082) 428,700
Effect of super tax refating o current year 316,723 225,442
Effect of change in rate of deferred tax - (27.474)
Others 7,450 (18.515)
1,573,345 2,273,794

Average effective tax rate 47% (2022 45%)

Decambear 31, December 31,
2023 2022
-------- (R= in thousands) —-—
24 EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE - basic and diluted

Frofit after taxation 1,800,504 2,729,440
—— | No. Of Shares} ———
Weighted average ordinary shares in issue during the year 109,153,152 109,153,152
mmems (RUPEES]) swemes
Earnings per ordinary share - basic and diluted 16.50 25.01

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company's finanaial instruments are credit risk, lguidity risk, foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. Mo changes made fo the objectives and policies
during the year ended December 31, 2023, The Board of Directors review and agree policies for
managing sach of thesea risks which are summarised balow,
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23,1, Credit Risk

Credil risk 15 the risk which arises with the possibility thal ong parly o a8 financial instrument
will Tall o discharge its obligation and cause the other party o incur a financial loss, The
Company alternpis to contral credil risk by moniloring credit exposures, limiting transactions
with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ahility to meet
contractual obligalions to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular indusiny.

The Company Is exposad to credit risk on long-term deposits, frade debis, advances fo
employees, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks fo minimisa
the credit risk exposure by dealing only to customers considered cradit worthy and obtaining
securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit nsk on the financial assets of
the Company at the reporting date is:

Carrying Values
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
(Rs in thousands)

At amortised cosl - unsecurad

Advances 66,183 2,007
Trade dabts — nat 9,533 648,929
Deposits and other receivables 842,691 130,837
Bank balances 5,182 634 ) 5,942,598

6,101,041 6,724,369

Qiuality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to axtarnal credit ratings or the histoncal information about counter party default rates as

shown below:
Carrying Values )
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
---------- (Rs in thousands) ———————

25.1.1.Trade debis - net

Customers with no defaulis in the past one year 9,533 648,929
Customers with soma defaults in past one year
which have been fully recovered - -
9,533 648,929

Carrying Values
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

——— (Rs in thousands) —s--——
25.1.2.Cash with Banks

a1+ 2,690,210 48,451
Al 214,458 5,894,145
Al 2,276,620 -

3,181,386 5,942 596
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5.4, Liguidity Risk

Liquidity rizsk is the risk that the Company will nol be able to mest its financial obligations as
they fail due. The Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit fines. The tabla balow
summarizas the maturity profile of the Company's financial labilities at the following reporting
dates:
Carr}ring Amount Less than 1 year
r— — [R5 in thousands) ———-
At amortised cost

Trade and other payables 924,617 924,617
Unpaid dividends 1,548,450 1,548,450
December 31, 2023 2,473,067 2.473,067

At amortisod cost

Trade and other payables 1,924 087 1,924,087
Unpaid dividends 2,330,418 2,330.418
December 31, 2022 4,254,505 4 254 505

25.3. Fareign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to a
change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due
to transactions in foreign currency. The Company is exposed to forelgn exchangs risk on the
following US Dollars denominated trade and other payables:

Decamber 31, December 31,
2023 2022
-------- {US dollars) ———se——
Trade and other payvables 1,705,600 2,108,827

The faraign currency exposure s adequately covered as the majority of the Company’s billing
Is determined in US dollars which is convertad into Pakistani Rupees at the exchangs rate
prevailing at the fransaction date,

Decamber 31, Decembear 31,
2023 2022
e 12011 1 -4 22-1 SRR
Pakistani Rupee to US
Dollars 281.86 226.65

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasaenably possible change in exchange
rates, with all olher variables hald constant, of the Company's prafil bafare tax:

Change in Effect on profil
Exchange rates beforo tax
{Rs in

thousands)
December 31, 2023 5% 1938

December 31, 2022 + 5% + 23,910

254, Interas! rate risk

Interaat rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fliows of a financial instrument will
fiuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
change in market interast rates relates primanly to the Company's financing obligations with
finating Interesl rates. However, as of the reporling date the Company doss not have any
financing obligations with floating interest rates.
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25.5. Equity price risk

Equity price risk is tha risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity instrumants, The
Company is not exposed to any equity price risk. as the Company does not have any investment
i equity shares as at the raporting date.

25.6. Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is lo maniain healthy capital ratios,
strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order fo ensure ample availability of finance
for its axisting and potential investmant projects, to maximize shareholder value and reduce the
cost of capital.

The Company manages s capial structure and makes adjustment to . in hight of changas in
econamic conditions. In order lo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Comparny may adjust
the amounts of divdends paid to shareholders. return capital to shareholders or Issue new
shares

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debl Mel debl is caleulated as total leans lass cash and bank balances. Capital signifias
equity as shown in the statement of financial position plus net dabt, The gearing ratio of the
Campany as at Decamber 31, 2023 is Nil {Decamber 31, 2022, Nil).

26. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise of inancial assels and (inancial llabililies, Financial assels consst of
long-term deposits, bank balances, adwances to employees, trade deposits, other receivables and
short-term investments, Financial liabllities consist of rade and other payables, unclaimed and unpaid
dgividands. The fair values of financial Instruments are not materally gifferent from their carrying values.

The Company uses the following higrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 10 Fair value measuremenls using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabllities.

Lovol 20 Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or lability, either directly (i.e., a5 prices) or indirectly {i.e., derved
from prices).

Loval 3: Fairvalue maasurements using inputs for the assal or [iability that are not basad on absarvahble
market data {i.2,, unobsarvable inputs),

As of the reporting dafe, the Company doss not have any financial instrumenis camied at fair value
that required categorization in Lavel 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

27. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

271, The aggregata amaount, chargad in the financial statements for the yaar, is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Direciors | Directors |
Chairman Chairman

Chilef [Non- Chief {Mon-

Executive Exsculivel Executives Executive Executive) Executives
N = T Y RO, L St L

hManagerial

remuneration 45,308 116,987 51,557 - 143,663

Prowident fund 2,193 5.725 2506 - G958

Bonus paid 11,270 115,465 11,919 - 47 481

Faa for

aftending

meetlings - 12,349 - - 10427 =
58,771 12,349 2AB 17T fi5, 902 10427 198,102

Murmiser 1 7 34 1 T 32
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27.2 The Chief Executive and certain Executives of the Company were alzo provided with the free
pse of Company maintained cars, club memberships, medical, shares of ulfimate parent
company and other benefits in accordance with their ferms of senvice.

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The refated parties include the Holding Company. associzted companies, and entities having directors
in commaon with the Company, Staff Provident Fund, directors and olher key management personnel,
Detail of refated parties with whom the Company has entered Info transactions with or has
arrangement [ agreement in place dunng the year alang with refationship and transactions with related
parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as
follows:
28.1. Mame and nature of relatlonship

a] Holding Company

ICTS! Mauritius Limited — 63.99% shares [directly) held in the Company,
b) Associated Companies due to significant influence

Agglina Investments Limited — 15.7 1% shares held in the Company
Euroasia Terminal {Private) Limited - 9.37% shares held in the Company

g} Associated companies, subsidiories, joint ventures or holding companies
incorporated outside Pakistan

ICTS! Mauritius Limited - & company incorporated in Mauritius
Aeoling Investments Limited - & company incorporated in British Virgin Islands

d) Associste Company due to comman directorship
Bilal Associates (Pvt) Limited
e¢] Post-employment benefit plan

Staff Provident Fund of the Company

Decamber 31 December 31,
2023 2022
MNote --—- — [R5 in thousands) —-——
28.2. Transactions with related parties

Holding Company
Technical services fee " 707,305
Dividends paid 1,892,190 1,269 027
Associated companies | other reiated parties
Terminal handling services and rent 78,530 73,618
Revenue from container handling 16,926 17,235
Dividends paid 658 B&7 BE7, 260
Key management personnel
Managenal Remunerstion 55,162 254 620
Company's contribution to provident fund 14,664 9,464

26,2, Amounts due from and due to related parties. amount relating to remuneration of the Chief
Executive and Directors are disclosad in the relevant notes to these financial statements.

Z0.4. All the fransactions with related parties are entered info at agreed ferms duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
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29. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Accrual for compansated leaves
Exchange loss - net
Finance coslt
Pravision for obsolescence in stores, spare parls and
loose tools
Charge for expected credit loss
Markup on savings accounts
Gain on disposals of

operating fixed assets - net

Operating profit before working capital
changes

(Increase) [ decrease in current assats
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Trade debts

Note

4.1.3&52
131
20
21

22
22

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

30. PROVIDENT FUND

December 31,

2023

3,373,849

725,368
3,874
108,123
1,833

192,717
11,714
(1,430,748)

(7,548)
(406,381)

2,879,182

379,104
627,682
(637,240)
369,546
(507,407)
2,841,321

December 31,
2022

wseeeee (Rs in thousands) - -

5,003,234

BE9,T26
7913
78,518
1,625

(507,867

(18,585) |
429,330

5,432 564

(86,026)
(21,974)
(57.669)

(165.660)

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

31. NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED
Persons employed as of
Average persons employed during the year

32. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
—— (Number) === —
4 B57
332 B75

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on May (8, 2024 by the Board of Direciors of

the Company.
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33. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors in their board meeting, held on May 09, 2024, have recommended a final cash
dividend of Rs. Nil per ordinary share amounting to Rs Nil for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
adjustment for this dividend will be incorporated in the subsequent financial statements of the

Company.
34. GENERAL

341, Amounts have been rounded off 1o the nearas! thousand rupees unless olherwise slated,

hq J_/b {%I—J—t i W, =

Chia =Utive Officer Chief Funém}cia! Officar Director
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2023

‘ Categories of Shareholders Tutar:aﬁltd'lares Percentage ‘
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
Bilal Shahid 1,000 Q.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
ICTS] Mauritius Limited 69,848,310 63.949
Asolina Investments Limited 17,155,639 1572
Enrigue Klar Razon 100 0.00
Edgardo Querijero Abesamis 100 0D.00
Paul Tameta Salanga 100 0.00
Jose Mamuel Mantecon De Jesus 100 0.00
EFG Private Bank (Channel lslands) Limited F70,000 07l
Eurnasia Temminal (Private) Limited 3,226,000 2.96
Synergy Limited 783,500 0.72
NIT and ICP - 0.00
Banks= Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Financial Institutions 720 0.00
Insurance Companies 0,600 0.06
Modarabas and Mutual Funds - 0.00
General Publc
a loecal 13,018,489 11.893
b. Foreign 1,065,789 .98
Fareign Companies 2,238,231 2,05
Others 984,474 0.90
Totals _ 109,153,152 1{]I.'LI]'D_
Categories of Shareholders Shares Held | Percentage
Shareholders holding 10% or more
ICTSI Mauritius Lirmited 69,848,310 B3.99
Aeolina Investments Limited 17,155,639 1672




Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2023

| MNo. of Shareholders

1229
1347
1347
1301

284

5766

From — S-harers To Share holdings Held
! 100 56,799
101 500 441,713
o 1000 1,109,387
1001 5000 3.277.338
a0a1 10000 2,229 873
10001 15000 1,102,140
15001 20000 982,301
20001 25000 787,100
25001 40000 593,120
30001 45000 250,700
45001 40000 158,000
40001 45000 251,600
45001 50000 346,500
50001 55000 105,900
55001 60000 290,200
60001 65000 121,200
E5001 70000 132,784
70001 75000 74,000
75001 80000 160,000
80001 85000 84,000
9000 95000 277,800
95001 100000 296,500
100001 105000 103,500
105001 110000 109,400
115001 120000 120,000
130001 135000 133,300
145001 150000 150,000
160001 165000 165,000
185001 190000 185,400
260001 265000 262 400
275001 280000 276,665
495001 500000 500,000
765001 770000 770,000
780001 785000 783,500
2235001 2240000 2,235,083
3225001 3230000 3,226,000
17155001 17160000 17,155,639
60845001 BUBS0000 69,848 310
109,153,152
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Glossary

Board: Board of Direciors

CEO: Chief Executive Officer

GSR: Corporate Social Responsibility

ICAP: Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
ICTSE: International Container Terminal Services Ine.
IFRIC: International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
ISO: International Organisation for Standardization
KPT: Karachi Port Trust

NIT: National Investment Trust Limited

PICT. Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited
PSX: Pakistan Stock Exchange

SECP: Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
SRB: Sindh Revenue Board

SRO: Statutory Regulatory Order
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